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ACTION: Final rule; request for comments.

SUMMARY:: The FAA is adopti worthiness directive (AD) for all Embraer S.A. Model
00 SE; ERJ 170-200 STD, -200 LR, -200 SU; ERJ 190-

airplanes. This AD was pro a repart of the failure of the inner pane of certain passenger

windows to meet ma

determining if cer F ger windows are installed, and performing corrective actions
if any affected pa D also prohibits the installation of affected parts. The FAA is
address the unsafe condition on these products.

e April 26, 2022.
eive comments on this AD by May 26, 2022.

Ilowing methods:
al eRulemaking Portal: Go to https://www.regulations.gov. Follow the instructions for
itting comments.

e Mail: U.S. Department of Transportation, Docket Operations, M-30, West Building Ground
Floor, Room W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, Washington, DC 20590.

e Hand Delivery: Deliver to Mail address above between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday through
Friday, except Federal holidays.



Examining the AD Docket

You may examine the AD docket at https://www.regulations.gov by searching for and locating
Docket No. FAA-2022-0451; or in person at Docket Operations between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday
through Friday, except Federal holidays. The AD docket contains this final rule, any comments
received, and other information. The street address for the Docket Operations is listed above.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Jacob Fitch, Aerospace Engineer, COS Program
Management Section, Operational Safety Branch, Compliance & Airworthiness Division, FAA,
10101 Hillwood Pkwy., Fort Worth, TX 76177; telephone (817) 222-4130; email
jacob.fitch@faa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Background

The FAA received a voluntary self-disclosure report indicatinggpossible failuxe ofthe inner pane
of certain passenger windows to meet fail-safe loads in the event of the complete/failure of the outer
pane. Manufacturer testing was performed to confirm the inadéquacy ofthe inngfwindow pane
design. The results of the testing revealed that the inner pan€of the passengerwindow failed to meet
maximum operating pressure. The root cause was deternmiified to & an inner window pane
dimensional thickness that is inadequate to support cabin pressurizationdoads. As a result, the design
was found to not be fail safe, meaning that the win@low assemblyadogs not retain the required residual
strength to maintain safe flight and landing of the aircraftsafter a failure or partial failure of the outer
window pane. This affects any Nordam Group Ingygiifansparency Division (NORDAM) passenger
window having part number (P/N) NP00Q88=3 Failure of the window's inner pane to meet maximum
operating pressure and lack of fail-safedlesign Jif not addréssed, could result in possible serious injury
to a passenger near the window due €0rapid déeempression, and consequent reduced ability of the
flightcrew to maintain the safe flight anéhlanding of the airplane. The FAA is issuing this AD to
address the unsafe condition ofi'these produets.

FAA's Determination

The FAA is issiiing this\AD beealise the agency has determined the unsafe condition described
previously is likélyto exist'or develop in other products of the same type design.

AD Requiremenits

THISAD requires.determining if any affected part, the NORDAM passenger window having P/N
NPOO038-3pis installed; repetitively inspecting the outer pane of affected parts for cracking;
immediately replacing cracked affected parts with serviceable windows; and eventually replacing all
affeet@d paxts, within 90 days, which eliminates the need for the repetitive inspections. This AD also
prohibits the installation of affected parts.

Justification for Immediate Adoption and Determination of the Effective Date

Section 553(b)(3)(B) of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) (5 U.S.C. 551 et seq.)
authorizes agencies to dispense with notice and comment procedures for rules when the agency, for
“good cause,” finds that those procedures are “impracticable, unnecessary, or contrary to the public
interest.” Under this section, an agency, upon finding good cause, may issue a final rule without
providing notice and seeking comment prior to issuance. Further, section 553(d) of the APA
authorizes agencies to make rules effective in less than thirty days, upon a finding of good cause.
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An unsafe condition exists that requires the immediate adoption of this AD without providing an
opportunity for public comments prior to adoption. The FAA has found that the risk to the flying
public justifies forgoing notice and comment prior to adoption of this rule because due to the lack of
a fail-safe design and failure of the window's inner pane to meet maximum operating pressure, a
complete failure of the outer window pane could result in possible serious injury to a passenger near
the window due to rapid decompression, and consequent reduced ability of the flightcrew to maintain
the safe flight and landing of the airplane. Accordingly, notice and opportunity for prior public
comment are impracticable and contrary to the public interest pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 553(b)(3)(B).

In addition, the FAA finds that good cause exists pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 553(d) for makifig this
amendment effective in less than 30 days, for the same reasons the FAA found good cauSe to forgo
notice and comment.

Comments Invited

The FAA invites you to send any written data, views, or arguments about thisfinal rule€Send
your comments to an address listed under ADDRESSES. Include Docket'No:FAA=202240451 and
Project Identifier AD-2022-00265-T at the beginning of your comments. The m@st helgful comments
reference a specific portion of the final rule, explain the reason for anysrecommended change, and
include supporting data. The FAA will consider all commentsdeceivedy. the closing date and may
amend this final rule because of those comments.

Except for Confidential Business Information (CBI)@s,described in the Yollowing paragraph, and
other information as described in 14 CFR 11.35, the EAA will@ost all g@mments received, without
change, to https://www.regulations.gov, including@ny personalimfomfation you provide. The agency
will also post a report summarizing each substantive verbaleentact received about this final rule.

Confidential Business Information

CBI is commercial or financial iiformationghat.is both customarily and actually treated as
private by its owner. Under the Ereedompef Information Act (FOIA) (5 U.S.C. 552), CBI is exempt
from public disclosure. If yousfeomments¥esponsive to this AD contain commercial or financial
information that is customafily treatetPas private, that you actually treat as private, and that is
relevant or responsive to thiSAAD#It Is impartant that you clearly designate the submitted comments
as CBI. Please mark eaéhipage @f.your sébmission containing CBI as “PROPIN.” The FAA will treat
such marked submissions as confidential under the FOIA, and they will not be placed in the public
docket of this AD, Submissions containing CBI should be sent to Jacob Fitch, Aerospace Engineer,
COS PrograntiManagement Section, Operational Safety Branch, Compliance & Airworthiness
Division, FAAT20101"Hillwood Pkwy., Fort Worth, TX 76177; telephone (817) 222-4130; email
jacob.fitch@faa.gow, Any"eommentary that the FAA receives that is not specifically designated as
CBI willke placed iRn'the public docket for this rulemaking.

Regulatory Flexibtlity Act

The reguirements of the Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA) do not apply when an agency finds
goad cause pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 553 to adopt a rule without prior notice and comment. Because the
FAA™has determined that it has good cause to adopt this rule without notice and comment, RFA
analysis is not required.

Costs of Compliance

The FAA estimates that this AD affects up to 65 airplanes of U.S. registry. (A total of 65
affected parts were produced.) The FAA estimates the following costs to comply with this AD:



Estimated Costs

Action Labor cost Parts Cost per Coston U.S.
cost product operators
Part number Up to 1 work-hour x $85 per |$0 $85 Up to $5,525.
inspection hour = $85

The FAA estimates the following costs to do any necessary actions that would be requiredibased
on the results of the part number inspection. The FAA has no way of determining the nupaber of
aircraft that might need these actions:

On-Condition Costs

Action Labor cost Parts Costfper product
cost
Repetitive inspection for 1 work-hour x $85 per hour = | $0 $85 perinsSpection
cracking $85 cycle.
Replacement 2 work-hours x $85 per houg&" | 500 $670.
$170

The FAA has included all known costs in its costsestimate. Accordiing to the manufacturer,
however, some or all of the costs of this AD maybe covered undergarranty, thereby reducing the
cost impact on affected operators.

Authority for This Rulemaking

Title 49 of the United States Cod@specifiesithesl=AA's authority to issue rules on aviation safety.
Subtitle I, section 106, describesfthe auth@rity of the FAA Administrator. Subtitle VII: Aviation
Programs describes in more détail the,scope ef the Agency's authority.

The FAA is issuing thi§ tulemaking underithe authority described in Subtitle V11, Part A, Subpart
I11, Section 44701: General reguifements,ddnder that section, Congress charges the FAA with
promoting safe flight@©fcivil airCraft in@ir commerce by prescribing regulations for practices,
methods, and progédures the Admmistrator finds necessary for safety in air commerce. This
regulation is withimithe seope of that authority because it addresses an unsafe condition that is likely
to exist or develop onproducts identified in this rulemaking action.

Regulatory Findings

This ADywill not have federalism implications under Executive Order 13132. This AD will not
have a_substantiaFdirect effect on the States, on the relationship between the national government and
thegStates, Or on the distribution of power and responsibilities among the various levels of
government.

Forthe reasons discussed above, | certify that this AD:

(1) Is not a “significant regulatory action”” under Executive Order 12866, and

(2) Will not affect intrastate aviation in Alaska.

List of Subjects in 14 CFR Part 39

Air transportation, Aircraft, Aviation safety, Incorporation by reference, Safety.



Adoption of the Amendment

Accordingly, under the authority delegated to me by the Administrator, the FAA amends 14 CFR
part 39 as follows:

PART 39-AIRWORTHINESS DIRECTIVES
1. The authority citation for part 39 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 106(g), 40113, 44701.

8 39.13 [Amended] Q
2. The FAA amends § 39.13 by adding the following new airworthiness dire ,




AIRWORTHINESS
DIRECTIVE

www.faa.gov/aircraft/safety/alerts/
www.gpoaccess.gov/fr/advanced.html

S.A.): Amendment 39-22010 ; Docket No. FAA-2022-0451; Project Identifier AD-2022-
(a) Effective Date

This airworthiness directive (AD) is effective April 26, 2022.
(b) Affected ADs

None.

(c) Applicability
This AD applies to all Embraer S.A. airplanes identi

AD, certificated in any category.
(1) Model ERJ 170-100 STD, -100 LR, -10

(d) Subject

Air Transport Associati

with this AD within the compliance times specified, unless already done.

(g ifnition of Affected Parts

Affected parts are NORDAM passenger windows having part number NP0O0038-3.



(h) Identification of Affected Parts

Before further flight, determine whether any affected part is installed on the airplane. A review
of the airplane maintenance records is acceptable, if the manufacturer and part number of the
installed windows can be conclusively determined from that review.

Note 1 to paragraph (h): Guidance for the actions required by paragraph (h) of this AD can be
found in NORDAM Alert Service Bulletin ERJ 56-A01, dated January 18, 2022.

(1) If any affected part is installed: Before further flight, do a visual inspection of the outer
window pane for cracking, and do the applicable action specified in paragraph (h)(1)(i) orir) of this
AD.

(i) If any cracking is found, before further flight, replace the affected part with a servigeable
window.

(i) If no cracking is found, repeat the inspection thereafter before each flight, until the affected
part is replaced, as specified in paragraph (h)(2) of this AD.

(2) Within 90 days after the effective date of this AD: Replace all affected parts installedon the
airplane with serviceable windows.

(i) Terminating Action for Repetitive Inspections

Replacement of an affected part, as specified in paragrdph (h)(2) of tN$AD, terminates the
repetitive inspection requirements specified in paragraph®h)(1)(ii) of this AD for that part.

(J) Parts Installation Prohibition

As of the effective date of this AD, no personimay installa NORDAM passenger window, part
number (P/N) NP00038-3, on any airplanes

(k) Alternative Methods of Compliance (AMOEs).

(1) The Manager, Large Afircraft Sectign, International Validation Branch, FAA, has the
authority to approve AMOES for this’AD, if feguested using the procedures found in 14 CFR 39.19.
In accordance with 14 CFR"39,19¢ send your request to your principal inspector or responsible Flight
Standards Office, as appropriate. If sending information directly to the Large Aircraft Section,
International Validation Branch, Sehddit to the attention of the person identified in paragraph (1) of
this AD. Informatien maydbe emailed to: 9-AVS-AIR-730-AMOC@faa.gov.

(2) Beforgyusing any approved AMOC, notify your appropriate principal inspector, or lacking a
principal inspector, thesmanager of the responsible Flight Standards Office.

(I) Related Information

For moredimf@rmation about this AD, contact Jacob Fitch, Aerospace Engineer, COS Program
Manpagement Section, Operational Safety Branch, Compliance & Airworthiness Division, FAA,
10101 Hillwood Pkwy., Fort Worth, TX 76177; telephone (817) 222-4130; email
jacab.fiteh@faa.gov.

(m) Material Incorporated by Reference

None.



Issued on April 4, 2022.
Lance T. Gant,
Director, Compliance & Airworthiness Division, Aircraft Certification Service.
[FR Doc. 2022-07708 Filed 4-6-22; 4:15 pm]
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